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PROJECT CALL 6.0 FAQ 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 

Q1. Is there a maximum number of collaborators per project? 

There is no maximum number of collaborators on a project. NextFlex encourages collaboration to 
bring the unique capabilities and strengths of partners to bear against the challenges and to 
distribute the direct participation. 

Proposers should factor the coordination of subcontractors including agreement negotiation into 
their project plans and schedules so that the overall project timing requirements will be met. 

Q2. Is there more information on the accompanying file submission for demonstrating MRL? What’s 

required? 

As described in the PC 6.0 Guidebook, the entry point into a NextFlex project is TRL 4-7 and MRL 
4-7. It is expected that most proposals will demonstrate that the foundational work meets this 
requirement in the proposal document through references, figures, and discussion. There may, 
however, be cases where other information that cannot easily be included in a written document 
would better serve this purpose, for example a video of a manufacturing process, a short 
demonstration of a functional device, etc. In these cases, a file providing this information can be 
submitted and referred to within the text. This is not to be used as a means to circumvent the 
proposal page limit. The information presented by proposers to justify the asserted starting TRL 
and MRL assertion is to be determined by the proposers based on considerations of their unique 
proposal. 

Q3. For Agency-funded Projects, what is the cost amount to match? 

For all projects under PC 6.0, the required cost-share must be at least 1:1. 

Q4. When we are describing the need (Proposal Section 1), do we speak to DoD applications or the 

project requirement?  

First and foremost, all proposals should address the project topic requirements. In PC 6.0, many 
topics are written broadly to allow proposers to develop specific proposals that addresses a range 
of FHE Roadmap gaps. All projects have the potential for dual-use applications, even though some 
topics call out or build from specific DoD application areas. Proposers should directly address all 
application information presented in the topic description. It is important that proposers flesh-out 
their vision and make the case for their technology and manufacturing approach. This strengthens 
both the background and need (Proposal Section 1) and commercialization strategy (Proposal 
Section 4). Proposals should specifically identify and address gaps in existing manufacturing 
capabilities as part of the description of need. 

Q5. How do I get access to the NextFlex FHE Technology Roadmaps? 

NextFlex members can access the roadmaps through the member portal. If you are a member and 
need a member portal account or need help accessing your account, contact us at 
info@nextflex.us. Access to the roadmaps is a member benefit, however non-members can satisfy 
the requirement to address gaps in the roadmaps in a number of ways. Non-members can partner 

mailto:info@nextflex.us
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with NextFlex members that can help guide the proposal for alignment, they can address example 
topics that are identified in some topics, or they can schedule a pre-submission consultation with 
NextFlex as described in the PC 6.0 Guidebook. 

Q6. Some topics (e.g. PC 6.6) call out several “examples of possible topics.” Does my proposal need 

to address all of these? / Is my proposal limited to only these? / If I choose one of these 

examples, must I address all of the elements described? / Can I address elements of more than 

one of these topics together in a single proposal? 

The examples provide specific areas that align with the broader topic, are of interest to the 
community, and relate to FHE Roadmap gaps. Proposals do not need to choose from among the 
listed examples; any proposal that meets the requirements of the topic are allowed. 

Q7. Is it the intention to fund only one proposal per topic or is more than one award possible? 

More than one award per topic is possible. For all topics, the number of awards will be 
determined by the balance of the number and quality of proposals received and availability of 
funding. Multiple awards are anticipated in topic 6.10. 

Q8. Can clarification be given regarding IP ownership and the NextFlex IP Policy? 

The basic framework governing Institute Developed Intellectual Property (i.e. IP developed under 
Institute funding) is set forth in the NextFlex IP Policy.  All NextFlex members have signed this 
policy and can be provided a copy of the policy. 

If non-members wish to review the IP Policy to determine their interest to submit a proposal, they 
may request a copy under NDA.  

As a general summary for convenience only, the IP Policy (consistent with 35 USC 200 et seq.) 
permits the developer to elect to retain title of IP developed through the project. All NextFlex 
members receive a royalty-free internal R&D license to all IDIP and the US Government receives a 
royalty-free government purpose license; commercial licenses must be available to NextFlex 
members and are to be negotiated between interested parties and the IP owner. Election of title 
procedures and other Subject Invention provisions (consistent with 37 CFR 401.14a) are set forth 
in the Development Agreement. 

Q9. Does the proposing team need to have a demonstrated track record of working with each of the 

proposed processes? Or is it OK to propose work with an established fabrication / 

manufacturing process with commercially available equipment that the proposing team has not 

worked with before? 

It is not required that the proposing team have a track record with the process in order to 
propose. Strength of the team and its expertise associated with the proposed work are likely to be 
considered by reviewers in evaluation of Proposal Sections 5 (Budget Justification and Cost Share) 
and 6 (Capability to Meet Technical and Business Goals) as set out in Appendix D (e.g. Criteria 10 
and 12). This may be an example for which teaming can help address such considerations with 
each partner bringing experience to the part of the work on which they will perform or advise. 
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Q10. Should the project proposed follow previously funded project or can it be a new project?  

Proposals can be entirely new and independent of projects funded in the past or you can build off 
of work that was done before.  

Q11. For cost share planning purposes, what are the anticipated program start dates? 

We anticipate notifying teams of selection in late May 2021 with contracting to start immediately 
thereafter. The contracting should take less than 30 to 45 days.   

Q12. Are you allowing ROM quotes for cover sheet submission? 

Yes, rough order of magnitude costing is allowable for the Online Cover Sheet submission. Full 
costing must be provided with the complete proposal submission. 

Q13. Can the COTS suppliers be non-US entities, or must all be US companies? If allowable, will this 

be considered in the judging? 

Buying from a US supplier would be preferable. 

Q14. Are full cost spreadsheets due with the technical proposals on 4/6? 

Yes, we do need the full cost proposals by April 6.  

Q15. Where can I access the Proposer’s Day briefing information? 

The Proposer’s Day briefing slides and recorded webinar are posted on the NextFlex Project Call 
6.0 website. (https://www.nextflex.us/project-call/project-call-6-0/) 

Q16. Are the FHE roadmaps available to proposers? 

The NextFlex FHE Technology Roadmaps are available to all NextFlex members. The latest drafts 
are posted in the NextFlex Member Portal at the bottom of the Technical Working Groups page. 

The PC 6.0 Guidebook describes three ways for non-members to achieve alignment of their 
proposal to the roadmaps: 

• Through pre-submission consultation with NextFlex 

• By partnering with a NextFlex member 

• By addressing the specific examples identified in the topics 

Q17. Have past funded projects typically asked for the maximum funding amounts? Do you favor 

funding two smaller/different proposals vs one for the total? 

Historically, many proposals request the maximum amount. However, we do receive proposals 
that seek less than the maximum amount.  During the review process, the value of the proposed 
work is evaluated in context of the proposed budget. Smaller projects do open up the possibility 

https://www.nextflex.us/project-call/project-call-6-0/
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of more project awards. Please note that it is anticipated that some topics will have multiple 
awards (which topics will depend on the number and quality of proposals received). 

Q18. During the Proposer’s Day you said, "This is not about developing a specific product but rather 

to address an FHE tech gap", however the transition potential to a "real" program need / 

platform, is important. Is it important that my proposal describe a project that can be 

commercialized? 

Creating technologies / process capabilities / demonstrators that can transition to commercial or 
DoD production and use is highly desirable. The work should focus on a product or manufacturing 
process that is transitionable.  

Projects should benefit all members via the knowledge that is generated. The development work 
being done, needs to be of general applicability. Developing a product that only benefits a single 
developer or set of developers on the project team and has low value to others is less desirable. 

Q19. How many proposals do you tend to get vs how many are awarded? For example, how many 

proposals were submitted for PC 4.0 and PC 5.0, and how many projects were funded? 

Each Project Call has a unique character in terms of topics, funding, and proposals received that 
makes direct comparison difficult; we caution reading too much into past statistics. However, it is 
understandable to seek such information to know past ratios. 

Project Call 5.0 utilized a similar proposal process to PC 6.0, with direct submission of full 
proposals. There were thirty-one (31) proposals; of those, twelve (12) projects were funded. 

Project Call 4.0 used a 2-stage proposal process. Thirty-one (31) pre-proposals were submitted, 
some of which were invited to submit full proposals. Eighteen (18) full proposals were received; of 
those, seven (7) projects were funded. 

Q20. If we have a foreign customer that is investing in development, can we count their contribution 

as matching funds? 

This question is best addressed on a specific case-by-case basis to avoid generalities. 

Work done on the project, including that which is funded by cost share, must be done in the U.S. It 
is also not the intention to fund development work that will transition to overseas manufacturing. 

Q21. Do the DOD funded topics require cost-share? 

Yes, all topics in PC 6.0 require a minimum 1:1 cost share. 

Q22. Will you be sharing a recording of the Proposer’s Day presentation?  

A recorded version has been posted on the NextFlex PC 6.0 website.  
(https://www.nextflex.us/project-call/project-call-6-0/) 

https://www.nextflex.us/project-call/project-call-6-0/
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Q23. If we are at an early stage in development of a component that will be part of our proposed 

project, can this meet the requirements for a Project Call like this? 

“Early stage” can indicate lower MRL/TRLs than are required for this Project Call (req. MRL 4-7). 
Proposals that are purely “research efforts” generally do not fall within the scope. Utilization of a 
lower level TRL/MRL component within a higher TRL/MRL system or sub-system can meet the 
Project Call requirement, assuming the proposed project focuses on the manufacturing challenges 
associated with the system or sub-system. Topics like this can be a good discussion point for pre-
submission consultation. 

Q24. How many proposals can a university submit? 

There is no limit on number of proposals an organization can submit to Project Call 6.0 overall or 
to a single topic. 

Q25. We work a lot with AFRL and have brought them in as a teammate in the past. How do we 

include them or another government organization on a proposal? How do you account for cost 

share? 

We encourage you to bring in DoD or other government agency partners as part of the project, 
and this has been done on numerous past projects. One limitation is that NextFlex cannot send 
funding to those DoD or other government agencies, so their work has to be separately funded. 
Regarding cost share, federal funding for their work is not an allowable cost share, however 
identifying such funding is useful and NextFlex is interested in such leveraged funds and the scope 
and scale of such work being done. 

Q26. Has anything changed regarding treatment of IP? 

The NextFlex IP policy has not changed. Institute-developed intellectual property (IP developed 
under institute funding) is owned by the developers. If you are selected for a project and you build 
a certain component, you own the patents but are required to grant an internal use license to 
NextFlex members. If you based your work on background IP, you are not required to give access 
to that IP unless it is fundamental to exercising the license to that institute-developed IP. 

 

TOPIC 6.3 QUESTIONS 

Q27. Referring to the Proposer’s Day slide on human monitoring, do you expect the project to focus 

on the manufacturing aspect of the device or the demonstration of the system which may focus 

on monitoring algorithm development. 

Projects should focus on both FHE manufacturing and demonstration. Projects that focus purely 
on algorithm development may not be competitive, although algorithm development may be an 
element of a proposal. Demonstrator Topics (such as Topic 6.3) should address manufacturing 
challenges associated with applications in those areas. 

 



 

7 

PROJECT CALL 6.0 FAQ 

TOPIC 6.4 QUESTIONS 

Q28. In what sense does a proposal for 6.4 (Advanced FHE Materials Demonstrator) need to be a 

"demonstrator"? 

You do not need to build a fully functioning demonstrator. This use of “demonstrator” refers more 
to demonstrating the capability of the material system. 

 

TOPIC 6.7 QUESTIONS 

Q29. How is 6.10 different than 6.7? Can an array demonstrator for 6.10 be submitted for 6.7? 

6.10 is agency-funded and calls out specific project requirements; 6.7 includes examples but 
defines a broad subject area. 

Q30. For 6.7a, what does tunable/configurable phase shift mean? 

Tunable/configurable phase shift refers to controlling the phase shift of an antenna via electronic 
control or geometric changes to the antenna. More broadly speaking, this is an example of 
integrating electronic functionality into the array elements. 

 

TOPIC 6.8 QUESTIONS 

Q31. Are new project leads only eligible to propose to Topic 6.8, or can new project leads also lead 

other projects such as 6.2 or 6.4? 

New project leads may submit proposals to any topic. The only restriction on eligibility applies to 
topic 6.8 which is limited to “New Project Leads” as defined and described in the Guidebook. 

Proposals submitted to Topic 6.8 may fully or partially align with the subject matter of other 
topics. 

Q32. For a member that hasn't led a project in PC 4.0 or 5.0, will proposals submitted to specific PC 

6.0 projects also be considered for project 6.8, or does a specific proposal need to be submitted 

for 6.8? 

Proposals submitted by New Project Leads will not automatically be considered under topic 6.8 
unless they are submitted to that topic. Proposals should be submitted to topic 6.8 in order to be 
considered for that category.  
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AGENCY-FUNDED TOPIC QUESTIONS 

Q33. For the two agency-funded topics, is it expected / allowable to include ITAR restricted subject 

matter? 

It is allowable, though not required, for projects carried out under Agency-funding to include 
Export Controlled subject matter. This would result in more restrictive distribution for the project 
technical reports.   

As stipulated in the PG 6.0 Guidebook (Sec. 6.1), proposers should refrain from including Export 
Controlled information in their proposal submissions. If the proposer feels the inclusion of such 
information is necessary to respond to the topic or to convey the merits of the proposed project, 
they should contact NextFlex by email (at proposal@nextflex.us) to discuss this fact no later than 
the online cover sheet submission deadline. Alternative means to submit the proposal document 
will be required. 

 

TOPIC 6.10 QUESTIONS 

Q34. Are additional specifics available regarding the “mmW” requirement for PC 6.10? Can more 

detail be provided regarding the desired communication frequency, range, and need? 

The Agency is targeting secure communications for disaggregated Unmanned Aerial Systems 
(UAS) platforms as well as electronic warfare applications. Specific frequencies, ranges, and 
bandwidths are still to be determined, but contractors are encouraged to select performance 
parameters consistent with the desired application(s). 

Q35. Does the topic seek both transmit and receive capability or one or the other? Receive satellite 

communication channels may not fit into their mmW requirement. 

Transmit and receive capability is desired but not required. It is understood that this effort may be 
a first step and that additional effort might be needed to mature and improve overall 
performance. 

Q36. Is liquid or air cooling preferred? 

The contractor should consider that these phased arrays are to be low cost, attritable, and 
possibly conformal when determining the most appropriate thermal management approach. The 
lowest cost, lowest mass method that is consistent with attritability and provides the requirement 
performance is the goal. 

mailto:proposal@nextflex.us
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Q37. Our team has previously developed the necessary components / subsystems for our proposed 

PC6.10 solution and has the necessary manufacturing and testing capabilities for our envisioned 

approach; however we have not integrated all of the components for this application.  Does our 

work meet the incoming TRL and MRL requirement? 

Proposals should be based on approaches that are currently within the target TRL and MRL ranges 
4 – 7 .  Information on TRLs and MRLs is available at http://www.nextflex.us/trl-cheatsheet/ and 
http://www.dodmrl.com/.  At this level it is generally expected that a low fidelity laboratory 
demonstration will be available.  For this topic with its broad objectives for development and 
integration of the technology, sub-system level demonstrations will be acceptable. 

 

http://www.nextflex.us/trl-cheatsheet/
http://www.dodmrl.com/

